
The complete STA PCC Meeting Packet is available on STA’s Website at www.sta.ca.gov 

 
 
 

 
 

PCC 
SOLANO 

PARATRANSIT COORDINATING COUNCIL (PCC) 
AGENDA 

 

1:00 – 3:00 p.m. 
Thursday, March 21, 2013 
Solano Community College 

4000 Suisun Valley Rd., Bldg. 800, Rm. 804 
Fairfield, CA 94534 

 
 
 

ITEM 
 

STAFF PERSON 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

Alicia Roundtree 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
(1:00 – 1:05 p.m.) 
 

 

3. OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT 
(1:05 – 1:15 p.m.) 
 

 

4. COMMENTS FROM STAFF AND REPRESENTATIVES FROM ADVISORY 
COMMITTEES 
(1:15 – 1:20 p.m.) 
 

 

5. PRESENTATIONS  
 

• Coordinated Transportation Plan Update 
for the San Francisco Bay Area 

 
• Draft Solano Mobility Management Plan 

 
(1:20 – 2:00 p.m.) 
 

 
 

Jennifer Yeamans, 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission 

 
Elizabeth Richards 

Project Manager, STA Manager 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
Recommendation:  Approve the following consent item. 
(2:00 – 2:05 p.m.) 
 

 

 A. Minutes of the PCC Meeting of January 17, 2013 
Recommendation: 
Approve PCC minutes of January 17, 2013. 
Pg. 1 

Sofia Recalde 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________         
PCC MEMBERS 

 
Richard Burnett 

 
Rachel Ford 

 
Kyrre Helmersen 

 
Judy Nash 

 
Alicia Roundtree-Chair 

MTC PAC 
Representative 

Solano County Health & 
Social Services 

Transit User Public Agency - Education Social Service 
Provider 

 
Edith Thomas  

 
Shannon Nelson - Vice Chair 

  
James Williams 

 
Kurt Wellner 

Social Service Provider Member at Large  Member at Large Transit User 

http://www.sta.ca.gov/


The complete STA PCC Meeting Packet is available on STA’s Website at www.sta.ca.gov 

7. ACTION ITEMS   
A. Draft Solano Mobility Management Plan 

Recommendation: 
1. Recommend to the STA Board to release the Draft Solano 

Mobility Management Plan to the public for review and 
comments. 

(2:05 – 2:15 p.m.) 
Pg. 17 

 Sofia Recalde 

B. Proposed PCC Meeting Locations 
Recommendation: 

1. Recommend STA staff to present the proposed PCC 
meeting location schedule to the PCC as part of the 2014 
Outreach and Work Plan at the November meeting. 

(2:15 – 2:25 p.m.) 
Pg. 19 

 Sofia Recalde 

C. Mobility Management Funding 
Recommendation: 

1. Authorize Paratransit Coordinating Council Chair to 
forward a letter of support to Caltrans in support of the 
Solano Transportation Authority funding applications for Job 
Access and Reverse Commute (JARC) and New Freedom for 
Solano Mobility Management programs. 

(2:25 – 2:35 p.m.) 
Pg. 21 

 Sofia Recalde 

D. PCC Membership Status 
Informational 
(2:35-2:40 p.m.) 
Pg. 23 

 Sofia Recalde 

8.  INFORMATIONAL ITEMS   
 A. PCA Versus Companion Policies 

Informational 
(2:40-2:45 p.m.) 
Pg. 25 

Sofia Recalde 

9. INFORMATIONAL ITEM – NO DISCUSSION  
 A. 2013 PCC Meetings and Locations 

Informational – No Discussion  
Pg. 33 

Sheila Jones 

10. TRANSIT OPERATOR UPDATES 
• Dixon Readi-Ride   
• Fairfield and Suisun Transit 
• Rio Vista Delta Breeze 
• SolTrans 
• Vacaville City Coach 

(2:45-2:55 p.m.) 
 

Group 

11. 
 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS AND COUNCIL COMMENTS 
Discussion 
(2:55-3:00 p.m.) 
 

Group 

  
 

 

http://www.sta.ca.gov/


 
For questions regarding this agenda: 

Please contact Liz Niedziela at (707) 424-6075 or eniedziela@sta-snci.com 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
The next regular meeting of the PCC is scheduled to meet at 1:00 p.m., Thursday, May 16, 
2013, at Benicia City Hall in the Commission Room located at 250 East L Street, 
Benicia, CA 94510. 

 



 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK  



 Agenda Item VI.A 
March 21, 2013 

 
 

 
 
 

 

PCC 
SOLANO PARATRANSIT COORDINATING COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
Draft Minutes for the meeting of  

January 17, 2013 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
PCC Chair Alicia Roundtree, called the meeting to order at 1:09 p.m. in the Council Chambers 
of the Suisun City Hall. 
 
Voting Members Present: In Alphabetical Order by Last Name 

 Richard Burnett  MTC PAC Representative 
 Rachel Ford   Solano County Health and Social Services 
 Kyrre Helmersen  Transit User 
 Alicia Roundtree  Chair, Social Service Provider 
 Edith Thomas   Social Service Provider (left the meeting at 2:00 p.m.) 
 James Williams  Member at Large 
 
 Voting Members Not Present: In Alphabetical Order by Last Name 
 Judy Nash   Public Agency – Education 
 Shannon Nelson  Vice-Chair, Member at Large 
 Kurt Wellner  Transit User 
  
 Also Present: In Alphabetical Order by Last Name 
 Angel Anderson  SolTrans 
 Sheila Jones   STA 
 Sorel Klein   STA 
 Johanne Lopez  Rio Vista Resident 
 Cindy Muckensturm  City of Dixon/Dixon Readi-Ride 
 Liz Niedziela   STA 
 Sofia Recalde   STA 
 Elizabeth Richards  Elizabeth Richards Consulting 
 Sam Shelton   STA 
 Elizabeth Stayner  MV Transit 
 Debbie Whitbeck  City of Fairfield/FAST 
 
II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

On a motion by Richard Burnett and a second by Rachel Ford, the PCC unanimously 
approved the January 17, 2013 Agenda. 
 

III. OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT 
Johanne Lopez, a Rio Vista resident announced that she was accepted to the Taxi Scrip Program 
which has become beneficial to her transit needs. She stated that it took her an hour to get to the 
meeting. 

1

sjones
Typewritten Text



 
IV. COMMENTS FROM STAFF AND REPRESENTATIVES FROM THE PARATRANSIT 

COORDINATING COUNCIL 
Sam Shelton provided a brief summary of the One BayArea Grant (OBAG) priority project 
assessment components. He stated that the Technical Advisory Committee will meet in 
February to assess the projects and criteria. He noted that a funding strategy to include all 
funding resources related to selected projects will be circulated. 
 
Liz Niedziela and Alicia Roundtree provided a memorial tribute to Shirley Stacy. 
 
Liz Niedziela proposed on behalf of the Rio Vista Delta Breeze to consider adding a meeting 
location in Rio Vista and this action item to be listed on the next PCC agenda. 
 
By consensus of the PCC Committee action on this item will be taken on March 21, 2013. 
 
By consensus of the PCC Committee action on adding a meeting location in Dixon will also be 
taken on March 21, 2013. 

 
V. PRESENTATIONS (2) 

(1) Elizabeth Richards provided a presentation on the Solano Mobility Management Plan. She 
stated that the plan was introduced in September 2012. Since that time, STA Staff and the 
Innovative Paradigms consultants have gathered input from the STA Board and other 
committees on implementation of the four potential components of the program. She stated that 
all groups showed general support of the Countywide ADA Eligibility process and to also move 
forward with the travel training program. She announced that a draft report is in progress and 
will be distributed shortly. (Attachment A) 
 
Sofia Recalde stated that STA Staff is currently working with the Transit Operators to finalize 
the elements of the (RFP) Request for Proposal for the ADA Eligibility process which will be 
sent out next week. 
 
Johanne Lopez asked if an increase in the taxi scrip was in the near future. 
 
Debbie Whitbeck responded that the price will remain the same until June 30, 2013 until further 
notice. 
 
Edith Thomas commented that the Department of Mental Health and the North Bay Regional 
Center have been working together on a community effort to provide sensitivity training on how 
to work with people with physical and/or developmental disabilities on public transportation. 
 
(2) Sorel Klein provided a presentation on Solano Napa Commuter Information (SNCI). He 
described the program and summarized the contents in the SNCI informational packet. He stated 
that SNCI’s Mission is to reduce congestion and improve mobility by helping individuals in the 
area to find alternatives to driving. (Attachment B). He stated that the SNCI department 
responded to 3,000 information calls, 275 internet requests/inquiries and provided 40,000 
brochures last year. He highlighted the Bike to Work Day and Solano Commute Challenge 
campaigns, farmers markets and other events. (Attachment B) 
 
Alicia Roundtree asked for clarification on incentives for employers. 

2



Sorel Klein responded that companies with 100 or more employees and 50 or more employees 
are given incentives for find alternate transportation to work. He noted that commuter tax 
benefits and subsidizing transit and vanpools are other incentives that are provided to 
employers. 
 
James Williams asked if the SNCI (800) telephone number is automated or a live system and 
also asked about the average time response about the Emergency Ride Home program for rides. 
 
Sorel Klein responded that a live person answers the phones and the average time for response 
for rides is within 30 minutes of the call. 
 
Liz Niedziela added that by calling 511 you are transferred to Solano Napa Commuter 
Information. She announced that STA Staff has been riding the intercity routes to familiarize 
themselves in order to inform passengers more efficiently. 
 
Edith Thomas recommended that TTY/California Relay be made available for the hard of 
hearing and verbal impediment users. 

 
VI. CONSENT CALENDAR 

On a motion by James Williams and second by Rachel Ford, the PCC approved Consent 
Calendar Item A, Minutes of the PCC Meeting of November 15, 2012. 

 
VII.  ACTION ITEMS 

A. FTA Section 5310 Program Call for Projects and Sub-Committee Recommendation 
Recommendation: 
Appoint Edith Thomas, Richard Burnett, and Jim Williams to the FTA Section 5310 scoring 
sub-committee. 

 
Sofia Recalde provided background on the FTA Section 5310 Program Call for Projects and Sub-
Committee Recommendation. She stated that at the November PCC meeting Chair Roundtree 
appointed a sub-committee to score the 5310 applications the subcommittee includes James 
Williams, Richard Burnett and Edith Thomas. 
 
Liz Niedziela stated that a quick workshop may be scheduled contingent to the number of 
applications that are submitted on March 11th to the STA and the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC). 
 
Kyrre Helmersen asked to be involved on the sub-committee to become familiar with the process. 
 
On a motion by Rachel Ford and a second by James Williams, the PCC unanimously 
approved the recommendation w. 
 

VIII.  INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
A. FTA Section 5316 & 5317 Programs Call for Projects 
Sofia Recalde provided an overview of the FTA Section 5316 & 5317 Programs Call for 
Projects. She defined that 5316 is the Job Access and Reverse Commute (JARC). She stated that 
the purpose 5316 is to improve access to transportation services for welfare recipients and low-
income individuals in order to improve access to employment activities and to transport 
residents of urbanized areas and non-urbanized areas to suburban employment opportunities. 
She stated that the estimated available funding is $1.88 million for the JARC cycle. She outlined 
the program fact sheet with the committee. 

3



She defined the 5317 as the New Freedom program. She stated that the purpose of the New 
Freedom Program is to provide additional tools to overcome existing barriers facing Americans 
with disabilities who seek integration into the work force and full participation in society. She 
stated that the estimated available funding for New Freedom is 1.33 million. She outlined the 
program fact sheet with the committee. She announced that grant applications for both programs 
are due to Caltrans on April 19, 2013. 
 
B. Companion Pass Policy 
Sofia Recalde provided an overview of the Companion Pass Policy. She stated that at the 
November meeting, a discussion emerged about companion pass policies for people who travel 
with passengers who are eligible for Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) services. The PCC 
requested that STA Staff research the issue and present the findings at the next PCC meeting. 
Sofia stated that she is currently working with the transit operators to find out what their PCA 
and companion policies are. She will present the findings are the March PCC meeting. 
 
Alicia Roundtree commented that the bus drivers attend the PCC meetings for public feedback 
and interaction purposes. 
 
C. PCC Membership Status and Appointments 
Sofia Recalde provided an update on the PCC membership status and appointments. The STA 
Board approved the PCC’s recommendation to reappoint both Richard Burnett and James 
Williams on December 12, 2012 for three additional years. She concluded that currently, there 
are vacancies for one (1) Transit User and one (1) vacancy for a Social Service Provider. 
 
D. Solano Transportation Authority’s (STA) Transit Studies 
Liz Niedziela provided an overview of the STA transit studies. She stated that STA has several 
transit studies that are a part of the STA Board’s adopted Overall Work Plan for Fiscal Year 
2012-13 and 2013-14. She noted that these plans and studies are intertwined with each other and 
will provide relevant information to the Alternative Fuel Study and the Public Private 
Partnerships (P3) at Transit Facilities Study. She announced that the Transit Sustainability study 
is scheduled to be finalized in February and presented to the STA Board in March. 
 
Richard Burnett expressed the importance of filling transit gaps in route services between 
Fairfield and Rio Vista. 
 

IX.  INFORMATIONAL ITEMS (No Discussion) 
A. 2013 PCC Meetings and Locations 
 

X. TRANSIT OPERATOR UPDATES 
Dixon Readi-Ride: Cindy Muckensturm provided a summary of their midyear report. She 
reported that paratransit rides have declined due to deceased riders and the Taxi Scrip program 
but general ridership has increased by 500. She announced that paratransit rides are provided in 
two mini vans with built in ramps and 3 person rear seat benches for $5 each way. The personal 
care assistants ride free. She stated that a 24 hours advance notice is required and the majority of 
the rides are scheduled to Davis. Otherwise they use the taxi scrip program. 
 
Fairfield and Suisun Transit: Debbie Whitbeck announced that the new service changes have 
been working great. She noted that she will not have new service ridership numbers until end of 
January but will provide them to the PCC committee in March. 
 

4



Rio Vista Delta Breeze: Liz Niedziela provided an overview of the monthly summary report for 
fiscal year 2012-13. She noted that in 5 months of service they had and total of 5,000 riders. She 
highlighted the new Volunteer Driver Program service that the City of Rio provides vehicles to 
volunteers to take Rio Vista residents where they need to go. 
 
SolTrans: Angel Anderson announced that they are transitioning into a brand new recording 
system which will provide better ridership numbers once completed. She noted that the “$10 
off” monthly promotion wrapped up on December 28th and went well. She announced route 78 
changes in February. 
 
Vacaville City Coach: Not present. 
 

XI. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS AND COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 2:53 p.m. The next meeting of the PCC is scheduled to meet at 1:00 
p.m. on Thursday, March 21, 2013 at the Solano Community College, Bldg. 800, Room 804 
located at 4000 Suisun Valley Rd., Fairfield, CA 94534. 

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



Agenda Item 7.A 
March 21, 2013 

 

PCC 
 
 

DATE: March 14, 2013 
TO: Solano Paratransit Coordinating Council 
FROM: Sofia Recalde, Transit Mobility Coordinator 
RE: Draft Mobility Management Plan 
 
 
Background: 
Since July 2012, STA has been working with consultants to develop a Mobility Management 
Plan for Solano County.  The development of a Mobility Management Plan was identified in 
the 2011 Solano Transportation Study for Seniors and People with Disabilities as a strategy 
to assist seniors, people with disabilities, and low-income and transit dependent individuals 
with their transportation needs.  The Solano Mobility Management Plan will identify existing 
services and programs, explore potential partnerships, and analyze how to address mobility 
needs in Solano County in a cost effective manner. 
 
The Solano Mobility Management Plan will address four key elements to assist seniors, 
people with disabilities, and low income and transit dependent individuals with their 
transportation needs.  These four elements are: 

• One Stop Transportation Call Center 
• Travel Training 
• Countywide In-Person ADA Eligibility and Certification Process 
• Older Driver Safety Information.   

 
All of these strategies were included in the scope of work for the Solano Mobility 
Management Program and were identified as priorities in the Senior and People with 
Disabilities Study.  These four elements have been presented to the Solano Seniors and 
People with Disabilities Transportation Advisory Committee, the Paratransit Coordinating 
Council (PCC), the Intercity Transit Consortium, the STA Board and the Senior Coalition.     
 
Discussion: 
The Mobility Management Plan was presented and discussed twice at each of the 
committees.  The purpose of the initial presentation was to present an overview of the study 
and its elements as well as to solicit comments.  The purpose of the second presentation was 
to present the four elements in more detail.  At each of the meetings, there was opportunity 
for discussion.  The committees’ input was incorporated into the Plan. 
 
The STA distributed the Draft Mobility Management Plan to the transit operators at the 
February Consortium meeting for comments and to both the Solano Seniors and People with 
Disabilities Transportation Advisory Committee and the PCC in March for review and 
comment.      
 

17

sjones
Typewritten Text

sjones
Typewritten Text

sjones
Typewritten Text



Recommendation: 
Recommend to the STA Board to release the Draft Solano Mobility Management Plan to the 
public for review and comments.   
 

18



Agenda Item 7.B 
March 21, 2013 

 

PCC 
 
 

DATE: March 14, 2013 
TO: Solano Paratransit Coordinating Council 
FROM: Sofia Recalde, Transit Mobility Coordinator 
RE: Proposed PCC Meeting Locations  

 

 
Background: 
In prior discussions about PCC meeting locations, it was proposed to schedule a meeting in 
Rio Vista.  The PCC noted that it was difficult for some committee members and attendees to 
travel to Rio Vista.  STA staff has worked with Rio Vista to provide fliers on Rio Vista Delta 
Breeze buses to promote the PCC meetings and to promote free transportation (provided by 
Delta Breeze) for Rio Vista residents to the Suisun City meeting. 

 
At the January meeting, the STA initiated a conversation about including Rio Vista as a 
potential meeting location.  Several PCC members stated that Rio Vista is a city in the county 
and, thus, should be included as a potential meeting location for PCC meetings.  The same 
was said for the City of Dixon.  A request was made to put this topic on the agenda as an 
action item.      

 
Discussion: 
The current 2013 PCC calendar rotates the PCC meeting location on a 12 month cycle for 
six meeting locations.  The current locations are: Suisun City (Jan), Solano Community 
College (Mar), Benicia (May), Fairfield (Jul), Vacaville (Sep), and Vallejo (Nov).  The 
inclusion of Dixon and Rio Vista to the rotating schedule would require extending the 
calendar to an 18 month cycle to accommodate the two additional cities.   

 
Attachment A presents a tentative PCC meeting location calendar that will include Dixon 
and Rio Vista starting in 2014.  Since the PCC has previously recommended hosting a PCC 
meeting at Solano Community College, the March PCC meetings will continue to be held at 
Solano Community College.   

 
Recommendation: 
Recommend STA staff to present the proposed PCC meeting location schedule to the PCC as 
part of the 2014 Outreach and Work Plan at the November meeting.     
 
Attachment: 

A. Tentative PCC Meeting Location Schedule including Rio Vista and Dixon 
 
 
 

19

sjones
Typewritten Text

sjones
Typewritten Text



2013 2014 2015 2016
Jan Suisun City Dixon Vacaville Rio Vista
Mar SCC SCC SCC SCC
May Benicia Suisun City Vallejo Fairfield
Jul Fairfield Benicia Dixon Vacaville
Sep Vacaville Rio Vista Suisun City Vallejo
Nov Vallejo Fairfield Benicia Dixon

Tentative  PCC Meeting calendar 

20

sjones
Typewritten Text
Attachment A



Agenda Item 7.C 
March 21, 2013 

 

PCC 
 
 

DATE: March 14, 2013 
TO: Solano Paratransit Coordinating Council 
FROM: Sofia Recalde, Transit Mobility Coordinator 
RE: Mobility Management Funding  
 
 
Background: 
Since July 2012, STA has been working with consultants to develop a Mobility Management 
Plan for Solano County.  The Draft Solano Mobility Management Plan will address four key 
elements to assist seniors, people with disabilities, and low income and transit dependent 
individuals with their transportation needs.  These four elements are: 

• One Stop Transportation Call Center 
• Travel Training 
• Countywide In-Person ADA Eligibility and Certification Process 
• Older Driver Safety Information 

 
The STA Board has taken action to support the development of the Solano Mobility 
Management Plan.  In addition, the PCC and the Solano Seniors and People with Disabilities 
Transportation Advisory Committee have been supportive and involved in the process.  
 
In March 2012, the PCC authorized the Committee Chair to submit a Letter of Support for 
the Solano Transportation Authority to pursue Job Access and Reverse Commute (JARC) 
grant funding for the Solano Mobility Management Program.  STA staff submitted a JARC 
application and was awarded one year of funding. 
 
Discussion: 
In November 2012, Caltrans released a call for projects for Job Access and Reverse 
Commute (JARC) and New Freedom projects (Cycle 7) in the state's small urbanized areas 
(UAs) and rural areas. The purpose of JARC is to improve access to transportation services 
to employment-related activities for welfare recipients and eligible low-income individuals.  
The purpose for New Freedom is to provide additional tools to overcome existing barriers 
facing Americans with Disabilities seeking integration into the work force and full 
participation in society.  Estimated available federal funding statewide is $1.88 million for 
JARC and $1.43 million for New Freedom.  Toll Credits are available and Caltrans will 
apply them as local match so applicants will not be required to provide a local match source 
for the awarded projects.  One of the eligible projects for both JARC and New Freedom 
include Mobility Management activities.   
 
This (Cycle 7) will be the last cycle of JARC and New Freedom funding as it has been 
eliminated in the new transportation bill, MAP-21.   

21

sjones
Typewritten Text

sjones
Typewritten Text



STA staff intends to submit applications for both JARC and New Freedom funds to support 
the implementation of the Mobility Management Plan and its programs.   
 
Recommendation: 
Authorize the PCC Chair to forward a letter of support to Caltrans in support of the Solano 
Transportation Authority funding applications for Job Access and Reverse Commute (JARC) 
and New Freedom for Solano Mobility Management programs. 
 

22



 
Agenda Item 7.D 
March 21, 2013 

 

PCC 
 
 
DATE: March 14, 2013 
TO:  Solano Paratransit Coordinating Council 
FROM: Sofia Recalde, Transit Mobility Coordinator 
RE:  PCC Membership Status 

 

 
Background/Discussion: 
The Solano Transportation Authority’s (STA) Paratransit Coordination Council (PCC) By-Laws 
stipulate that there are eleven members on the PCC.  Many of the positions are to be filled by specific 
types of organizations or transit riders.  At the January meeting, there was one (1) vacancy for a Social 
Service provider and one (1) vacancy for a Transit User.   
 
STA staff will continue to recruit for the two (2) vacancies. Input from the Committee is welcomed. 
 
Judy Nash will have completed the three year term of service in April 2013. All members are required 
to be reappointed by the STA Board.  There are no term limits for PCC members, and all members are 
encouraged to reapply for their position for another three years.  At the time of writing this agenda item, 
staff was not able to contact Judy to confirm her decision on her committee membership.  Pending Judy 
Nash's consent, STA staff is presenting this recommendation. 
 
Recommendation: 
Forward a recommendation to the STA Board to reappoint Judy Nash to the Paratransit Coordinating 
Council for an additional three year term. 
 
Attachments: 

A. PCC Membership Status (March 2013) 
 

23

sjones
Typewritten Text

sjones
Typewritten Text

sjones
Typewritten Text



ATTACHMENT A 
 
 

Solano County 
 

Paratransit Coordinating Council 
 

Membership Status 
 

March 2013  
 

Member Jurisdiction Agency Appointed Term Expires 

Alicia Roundtree Social Service Provider Independent Living Resource Center October 2010 October 2013 

Edith Thomas Social Service Provider Connections 4 Life March 2012 March 2015 

James Williams Member at Large Member at Large December 2012 December 2015 

Judy Nash Public Agency - Education Solano Community College April 2010 April 2013 

Kurt Wellner Transit User Transit User September 2012 September 2015 

Kyrre Helmersen Transit User Independent Living Resource Center April 2012 April 2015 

Rachel Ford Public Agency/County of Solano Solano County Mental Health June 2010 June 2013 

Richard Burnett MTC PAC Representative SolTrans PAC Representative December 2012 December 2015 

Shannon Nelson Member at Large ADA Coordinator for Vacaville September 2010 September 2013 

Vacant Transit User    

Vacant Social Service Provider    

 

24



Agenda Item 8.A 
March 21, 2013 

 

PCC 
 
 

DATE: March 14, 2013 
TO: Solano Paratransit Coordinating Council 
FROM: Sofia Recalde, Transit Mobility Coordinator 
RE: PCA versus Companion Policies 

 

Background: 
At the November meeting, a discussion emerged about companion pass policies for people 
who travel with passengers who are eligible for Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 
services.  The PCC requested that STA staff research the issue and present the findings at the 
next PCC meeting.  The following findings were presented to the PCC at the January 17, 
2013 meeting: 
 
Companion versus PCA: A companion is any friend or family member that is traveling with 
an ADA eligible person.  A personal care attendant (PCA) is someone who is designated or 
employed specifically to help the eligible individual meet his or her personal needs.  A 
companion is not the same as a PCA, unless the companion has been designated as a PCA.   

 
Registering a PCA: Transit operators cannot require ADA eligible passengers to register a 
PCA.  However, transit operators may require individuals to indicate whether or not he or she 
travels with a PCA as part of the initial eligibility process.  Therefore, if an ADA eligible 
passenger does not indicate that he or she travels with a PCA, any individual traveling with 
him or her will be considered a companion. 

 
PCAs and companions on paratransit: PCAs are not charged for riding paratransit.  
Companions are charged the same fare as the ADA eligible passenger for riding paratransit.  
Transit operators are required to permit one person to accompany the ADA eligible 
passenger.  If the ADA eligible passenger is traveling with a PCA, the passenger may still 
bring one or more companions, on a space-available basis.  Transit operators may require 
ADA eligible passengers to reserve a space for the PCA and/or companion(s) when reserving 
the trip.  

 
PCAs and companions on fixed-route: Although some transit operators go beyond the 
minimum ADA requirements and allow PCAs and companions to travel for free or at a 
discounted fare, the ADA does not require it (Attachment A). 

 
 
 
 

25

sjones
Typewritten Text

sjones
Typewritten Text



Discussion: 
STA staff worked with Solano County transit operators to collect information about their 
PCA and companion fare policies.  Attachment B shows each transit operator’s policies on: 
• Registering a PCA 
• Whether or not a companion can act as a PCA 
• PCA fares on fixed route service 
• Companion fares on both fixed route and paratransit service.   

  
Recommendation: 
Informational. 

 
Attachments: 

A. Solano County transit operator policies on companions and PCAs of ADA eligible 
passengers. 

B. Civil Rights Frequently Asked Questions from the Federal Transit Administration and 
accompanying ADA Regulations 
 

26



Attachment A    

Dixon No. The NEED for an attendant should be indicated on the ADA application.

FAST

No.  Applicants check a box on their application stating that they travel with a PCA. However, even if they don't check the box and a PCA is 

needed, they can travel with one.  Passenger should let dispatch know that they are travelling with PCA.

Rio Vista Delta Breeze Yes, as part of the application process.  If the PCA changes, they can advise the dispatcher.

SolTrans Yes

Vacaville City Coach No. The NEED for an attendant should be indicated on the ADA application.

Dixon Not applicable

FAST Any person who is riding with an ADA certified passenger as their PCA rides free, even if passenger did not check the PCA box.

Rio Vista Delta Breeze A companion that is registered as a PCA would have the benefit of riding free of charge on paratransit service.

SolTrans A companion that is registered as a PCA would have the benefit of riding free of charge on paratransit service.

Vacaville City Coach A companion that is registered as a PCA would have the benefit of riding free of charge on paratransit service.

Dixon Regular fare

FAST Same fare as the ADA certified passenger

Rio Vista Delta Breeze Regular fare

SolTrans Same fare as the ADA certified passenger

Vacaville City Coach Regular fare

Dixon Not applicable because Dixon does not have fixed route service

FAST Free

Rio Vista Delta Breeze Free

SolTrans Same fare as the senior or person with disability they are riding with, as long as the reduced fare passenger shows ID

Vacaville City Coach Regular fare

Dixon Not applicable because Dixon does not have fixed route service

FAST Same fare as ADA eligible passenger with whom they are traveling (half the regular fare)

Rio Vista Delta Breeze Regular fare

SolTrans Regular fare

Vacaville City Coach Regular fare

What is the fare for a companion on fixed route?

Solano County Transit Operator PCA and Companion Policies

Do you require ADA eligible passengers to register a PCA if they have one?

What is your policy regarding a companion acting as a PCA?

What is the fare for a companion on paratransit?

What is the fare for a PCA on fixed route?  

27



FTA’s Civil Rights FAQs: 

http://ftawebprod.fta.dot.gov/ContactUsTool/Public/FAQs.aspx?CategoryID=4 

 

Question:  May a transit entity require a paratransit eligible individual who will be traveling 

with a personal care attendant (PCA) to register their use of a PCA with the transit 

entity? 

 

Answer:  Under Department of Transportation (DOT) Americans with Disabilities Act 

(ADA) regulations at 49 C.F.R. Section 37.125(i), a transit provider may 

require an individual to indicate whether he or she travels with a personal 

care attendant (PCA) as part of the initial eligibility process. The transit entity 

is also permitted to make further inquiries regarding the individual’s actual need 

for a PCA. When making any such inquiries, it is important to note an 

individual’s need for a PCA may be unrelated to the trip itself, and that the 

passenger may not require the assistance of a PCA while onboard the vehicle. 

Because of the nature of typical PCA functions, it is most likely that the services 

provided by a PCA would be required throughout the day at the passenger’s 

destination. All that is required is that the passenger establish that he or she 

requires a PCA, and for the PCA and the passenger to be traveling together 

between the same points. If the rider does not indicate the use of a PCA, then 

any individual accompanying him or her will be regarded simply as a 

companion. 

 

28

http://ftawebprod.fta.dot.gov/ContactUsTool/Public/FAQs.aspx?CategoryID=4


Question:  May personal care attendants (PCAs) ride for free on complementary paratransit 

and fixed route?  

 

Answer: Under Department of Transportation (DOT) Americans with Disabilities Act 

(ADA) regulations at 49 C.F.R. Section 37.131(c)(3), a personal care attendant 

(PCA) may not be charged a fare for complementary paratransit service. 

Under 49 C.F.R. Section 37.123(f)(1)(ii), a companion (i.e., friend or family 

member) does not count as a PCA unless the companion is actually acting in the 

capacity of PCA. PCAs may be charged a fare on fixed route. While some transit 

systems go beyond the minimum requirements of the ADA and allow PCAs 

to ride for free, there is no requirement that they do so. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

29



Question: May a rider eligible for complementary paratransit be accompanied by more than 

one individual?  

 

Answer: Under Department of Transportation (DOT) Americans with Disabilities Act 

(ADA) regulations at 49 C.F.R. Section 37.123(f), transit entities are required 

to permit one person to accompany the paratransit eligible individual. 

Additional persons accompanying the eligible individual are to be served on 

a space-available basis to prevent displacement of other ADA paratransit eligible 

individuals. The transit provider may not limit who the companion may be; the 

companion may be a family member, friend, or business associate, etc. The transit 

authority may require that the eligible individual reserve a space for the 

companion when reserving his or her own ride. A personal care attendant (PCA), 

someone designated or employed to assist the eligible individual, may always ride 

with the eligible individual. The transit entity may require that the eligible 

individual reserve a space for the PCA when reserving the trip. If there is a PCA 

on the trip, the eligible individual may still bring a companion, as well as 

additional companions on a space-available basis. To be considered as 

“accompanying” the eligible individual, a companion must have the same origin 

and destination points as the eligible individual. 

 
 

 

 

 

30



Code of Federal Regulations 

Title 49 – Transportation. 

Subtitle A - Office of the Secretary of Transportation. 

PART 37 - TRANSPORTATION SERVICES FOR INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES 
(ADA). 

Subpart F—Paratransit as a Complement to Fixed Route Service 

 
 

§ 37.123      ADA paratransit eligibility: Standards. 

      (f) Individuals accompanying an ADA paratransit eligible individual shall be provided 

service as follows: 

      (1) One other individual accompanying the ADA paratransit eligible individual shall be 

provided service— 

      (i) If the ADA paratransit eligible individual is traveling with a personal care attendant, the 

entity shall provide service to one other individual in addition to the attendant who is 

accompanying the eligible individual; 

      (ii) A family member or friend is regarded as a person accompanying the eligible individual, 

and not as a personal care attendant, unless the family member or friend registered is acting in 

the capacity of a personal care attendant; 

      (2) Additional individuals accompanying the ADA paratransit eligible individual shall be 

provided service, provided that space is available for them on the paratransit vehicle carrying the 

ADA paratransit eligible individual and that transportation of the additional individuals will not 

result in a denial of service to ADA paratransit eligible individuals; 

      (3) In order to be considered as “accompanying” the eligible individual for purposes of this 

paragraph (f), the other individual(s) shall have the same origin and destination as the eligible 

individual. 

 

 

31



§ 37.125      ADA paratransit eligibility: Process. 

      (i) In applications for ADA paratransit eligibility, the entity may require the applicant to 

indicate whether or not he or she travels with a personal care attendant. 

 

§ 37.131      Service criteria for complementary paratransit. 

      The following service criteria apply to complementary paratransit required by § 37.121 of 

this part. 

      (c) Fares. The fare for a trip charged to an ADA paratransit eligible user of the 

complementary paratransit service shall not exceed twice the fare that would be charged to an 

individual paying full fare (i.e., without regard to discounts) for a trip of similar length, at a 

similar time of day, on the entity's fixed route system. 

      (1) In calculating the full fare that would be paid by an individual using the fixed route 

system, the entity may include transfer and premium charges applicable to a trip of similar 

length, at a similar time of day, on the fixed route system. 

      (2) The fares for individuals accompanying ADA paratransit eligible individuals, who are 

provided service under § 37.123 (f) of this part, shall be the same as for the ADA paratransit 

eligible individuals they are accompanying. 

      (3) A personal care attendant shall not be charged for complementary paratransit service. 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: “49 CFR 37.125 - ADA Paratransit Eligibility: Process.” U.S. Government Printing Office.  Accessed 
01/08/2013, http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2011-title49-vol1/xml/CFR-2011-title49-vol1-part37-subpartF.xml 

32

http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2011-title49-vol1/xml/CFR-2011-title49-vol1-part37-subpartF.xml


Agenda Item 9.A 
  March 21, 2013 

 

PCC 
 
 
DATE:  March 14, 2013 
TO:  Solano Paratransit Coordinating Council 
FROM: Sheila Jones, Administrative Assistant 
RE: 2013 PCC Meetings and Locations 
 

 
A. 2013 PCC Meetings and Locations: 

 
City of Benicia, Commission Room (Confirmed) 
Thursday, May 16, 2013 
1:00 – 3:00 p.m. 
250 East L St. 
Benicia, CA 94510 
(707) 746-4202 
 
Fairfield Community Center, Vista Conference Room (Confirmed) 
Thursday, July, 18, 2013 
1:00 – 3:00 p.m. 
1000 Kentucky Street 
Fairfield, CA 94533 
(707) 428-7422 
 
Ulatis Community Center, Room D (Confirmed) 
Thursday, September 19, 2013 
1:00 – 3:00 p.m. 
1000 Ulatis Dr. 
Vacaville, CA 95687 
(707) 469-4000 
 
John F. Kennedy Library, Joseph Room (Confirmed) 
Thursday, November 21, 2013 
1:00 – 3:00 p.m. 
505 Santa Clara St. 
Vallejo, CA 94590 
(866) 572-7587 

33

sjones
Typewritten Text


	1-17-13 PCC_(6.A) Minutes
	PCC
	SOLANO PARATRANSIT COORDINATING COUNCIL
	III. OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT
	IV. COMMENTS FROM STAFF AND REPRESENTATIVES FROM THE PARATRANSIT COORDINATING COUNCIL
	V. PRESENTATIONS (2)
	VI. CONSENT CALENDAR
	VII.  ACTION ITEMS
	VIII.  INFORMATIONAL ITEMS
	IX.  INFORMATIONAL ITEMS (No Discussion)
	X. TRANSIT OPERATOR UPDATES


	03-21-13 PCC_(7.A) Draft Mobility Management Plan
	03-21-13 PCC_(7.A) (attachment A) PCC Membership Status
	03-21-13 PCC_(7.B) attachment A)tentative PCC meeting location calendar
	Sheet1

	03-21-13 PCC_(7.B) Proposed PCC Meeting locations
	03-21-13 PCC_(7.C) Draft MM Funding Recommendation
	03-21-13 PCC_(7.D) PCC Membership Status
	03-21-13 PCC_(8.A) PCA versus companion policies
	03-21-13_2013 PCC (8)(attachment A) Companion v PCA Policies
	03-21-13_2013 PCC (8)(attachment B) PCC Companion Pass Policy
	Source: “49 CFR 37.125 - ADA Paratransit Eligibility: Process.” U.S. Government Printing Office.  Accessed 01/08/2013, http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2011-title49-vol1/xml/CFR-2011-title49-vol1-part37-subpartF.xml

	03-21-13_PCC(9.A) 2013 PCC  Meetings and Locations
	PCC

	3-21-13 PCC Agenda.pdf
	/
	PCC
	PARATRANSIT COORDINATING COUNCIL (PCC)
	AGENDA
	Thursday, March 21, 2013
	Solano Community College
	4000 Suisun Valley Rd., Bldg. 800, Rm. 804
	Fairfield, CA 94534
	ITEM
	STAFF PERSON
	CALL TO ORDER

	Alicia Roundtree
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT
	COMMENTS FROM STAFF AND REPRESENTATIVES FROM ADVISORY COMMITTEES
	PRESENTATIONS 
	 Coordinated Transportation Plan Update for the San Francisco Bay Area
	 Draft Solano Mobility Management Plan
	CONSENT CALENDAR
	(2:00 – 2:05 p.m.)
	Minutes of the PCC Meeting of January 17, 2013
	Recommendation:
	ACTION ITEMS
	Informational – No Discussion 
	Discussion

	ADJOURNMENT



	3-21-13 PCC Agenda.pdf
	/
	PCC
	PARATRANSIT COORDINATING COUNCIL (PCC)
	AGENDA
	Thursday, March 21, 2013
	Solano Community College
	4000 Suisun Valley Rd., Bldg. 800, Rm. 804
	Fairfield, CA 94534
	ITEM
	STAFF PERSON
	CALL TO ORDER

	Alicia Roundtree
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT
	COMMENTS FROM STAFF AND REPRESENTATIVES FROM ADVISORY COMMITTEES
	PRESENTATIONS 
	 Coordinated Transportation Plan Update for the San Francisco Bay Area
	 Draft Solano Mobility Management Plan
	CONSENT CALENDAR
	(2:00 – 2:05 p.m.)
	Minutes of the PCC Meeting of January 17, 2013
	Recommendation:
	ACTION ITEMS
	Informational – No Discussion 
	Discussion

	ADJOURNMENT



	3-21-13 PCC Agenda.pdf
	/
	PCC
	PARATRANSIT COORDINATING COUNCIL (PCC)
	AGENDA
	Thursday, March 21, 2013
	Solano Community College
	4000 Suisun Valley Rd., Bldg. 800, Rm. 804
	Fairfield, CA 94534
	ITEM
	STAFF PERSON
	CALL TO ORDER

	Alicia Roundtree
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT
	COMMENTS FROM STAFF AND REPRESENTATIVES FROM ADVISORY COMMITTEES
	PRESENTATIONS 
	 Coordinated Transportation Plan Update for the San Francisco Bay Area
	 Draft Solano Mobility Management Plan
	CONSENT CALENDAR
	(2:00 – 2:05 p.m.)
	Minutes of the PCC Meeting of January 17, 2013
	Recommendation:
	ACTION ITEMS
	Informational – No Discussion 
	Discussion

	ADJOURNMENT



	3-21-13 PCC Agenda.pdf
	/
	PCC
	PARATRANSIT COORDINATING COUNCIL (PCC)
	AGENDA
	Thursday, March 21, 2013
	Solano Community College
	4000 Suisun Valley Rd., Bldg. 800, Rm. 804
	Fairfield, CA 94534
	ITEM
	STAFF PERSON
	CALL TO ORDER

	Alicia Roundtree
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT
	COMMENTS FROM STAFF AND REPRESENTATIVES FROM ADVISORY COMMITTEES
	PRESENTATIONS 
	 Coordinated Transportation Plan Update for the San Francisco Bay Area
	 Draft Solano Mobility Management Plan
	CONSENT CALENDAR
	(2:00 – 2:05 p.m.)
	Minutes of the PCC Meeting of January 17, 2013
	Recommendation:
	ACTION ITEMS
	Informational – No Discussion 
	Discussion

	ADJOURNMENT



	3-21-13 PCC Agenda.pdf
	/
	PCC
	PARATRANSIT COORDINATING COUNCIL (PCC)
	AGENDA
	Thursday, March 21, 2013
	Solano Community College
	4000 Suisun Valley Rd., Bldg. 800, Rm. 804
	Fairfield, CA 94534
	ITEM
	STAFF PERSON
	CALL TO ORDER

	Alicia Roundtree
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT
	COMMENTS FROM STAFF AND REPRESENTATIVES FROM ADVISORY COMMITTEES
	PRESENTATIONS 
	 Coordinated Transportation Plan Update for the San Francisco Bay Area
	 Draft Solano Mobility Management Plan
	CONSENT CALENDAR
	(2:00 – 2:05 p.m.)
	Minutes of the PCC Meeting of January 17, 2013
	Recommendation:
	ACTION ITEMS
	Informational – No Discussion 
	Discussion

	ADJOURNMENT






